COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BOMET



TENDER DOCUMENT

FOR

SUPPLY, DELIVERY, INSTALLATION, TESTING AND COMMISSIONING OF COUNTY INTERGRATED HOSPITAL MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM (CIHMIS)

TENDER NO: CGB/ADM/ICT/001/2019/20

NEGOTIATION NO:781713

County Government of Bomet © 2020

SECTIC	DN 1:	5
А.	INTRODUCTION	5
В.	INVITATION TO TENDER	6
SECTIC	ON II: INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	7
A.	GENERAL:	7
2.1	Definition	7
2.2	Eligibility and Qualification Requirement	7
2.3		
2.4	Goods Eligibility and Conformity to TENDER Document	9
2.5	The documentary evidence of conformity	9
2.6	Site Visits	10
2.7	Cost of Tendering	10
В.	TENDER DOCUMENT	11
2.8	Contents of Tender Document	11
2.9		
2.1	0 Amendment of Tender Documents	12
C.	PREPARATION OF THE TENDER DOCUMENT	
2.1	1 Language of Tender Document	12
2.1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
2.1	1	
	BID SUBMISSION GUIDELINES	
2.1		
2.1		
2.1		
2.1°	5	
2.1		
2.1°	5 1	
2.2		
	SUBMISSION OF THE TENDER DOCUMENT	
2.2	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
_ 2.2		
	BID OPENING AND EVALUATION	
2.2		
2.2		
2.2	1	
2.2		
2.2	1	
2.2		
2.3		
2.3		
2.3	5 1	
2.3	0 5	
2.3	4 Correction of Errors	24

Table of Contents

2.35	Evaluation and Comparison of the Financial Proposals	24
2.36	Contacting the Procuring Entity	25
2.37	Due Diligence	
2.38	Negotiations	26
2.39	Award of Contract	26
2.40	Procuring Entity's Right to vary Quantities	27
2.41	Procuring Entity's Right to Accept or Reject Any or All	
Propos	sals	27
2.42	Notification of Award and Signing of the Contract	27
2.43	Performance Guarantee	28
2.44	Advance Payment	
2.45	Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices	29
2.46	Price of the Tender Document	29
2.47	Tender Document information	29
2.48	More Instructions	29
2.49	Appendix to Instructions to Bidders	30
SECTION I	III - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	31
3.0	Definitions	31
3.1	Application	31
3.2	Country of Origin	31
3.3	Standards	
3.4	Use of Contract Documents and Information	31
3.5	Patent Rights	32
3.6	Performance Security	32
3.7	Inspection and Tests	32
3.8	Packing	33
3.9	Delivery and Documents	33
3.10	Insurance	33
3.11	Payment	33
3.12	Prices	34
3.13	Assignment	34
3.14	Sub contracts	34
3.15	Termination for Default	34
3.16	Liquidated Damages	35
3.17	Resolution of Disputes	35
3.18	Language and Law	35
3.19	Force Majeure	35
3.20	Notices	
SPECIAL I	V - SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	36
	on Special Conditions of Contract	
SECTION -	- V- SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS AND PRICES	37
	Schedule of Requirements and Prices	
SECTION V		
6.1	GENERAL	38
SECTION V	VII – SYSTEM AND SERVER SPECIFICATIONS	39
SECTION V	VIII - STANDARD FORMS	57

8.1 Technical Proposal Submission Form	57
8.2 Confidential Business Questionnaire Form	57
8.3 Tender Security Form	57
8.4 Contract Form	57
8.5 Performance Security form	57
8.6 Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment	57
8.7 Manufacturer's Authorization Form	
8.8 Letter of Notification of Award	57
8.9 Declaration Form	57
8.10 Details of Sub-contractors	57
8.11 Form of written Power-of-Attorney (s)	57
8.12 Forms	57
8.13 FORM OF TENDER	58
8.14 TECHNICAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM	59
8.15 CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS QUESTIONNAIRE FORM	60
8.16 TENDER SECURITY FORM	62
8.17 CONTRACT FORM	63
8.18 PERFORMANCE SECURITY FORM	64
8.19 BANK GUARANTEE FOR ADVANCE PAYMENT	65
8.20 MANUFACTURER'S AUTHORIZATION FORM	66
8.21 LETTER OF NOTIFICATION OF AWARD	67
8.22 DECLARATION FORM	68
8.23 DETAILS OF SUB-CONTRACTORS	69
8.24 FORM OF WRITTEN POWER-OF-ATTORNEY (S)	70

SECTION 1:

A. INTRODUCTION

- 1.1This standard tender document for supply, delivery, installation, testing and commissioning of County Integrated Hospital Management information System has been prepared for use by County Government of Bomet
- 1.2The following general conditions should be observed when using the document.
 - a) Specific details should be furnished in the tender notice and in the special conditions of contract. The final document to be provided to the Bidders should not have blank spaces or give options.
 - b) The instructions to the Bidders and the general conditions of contract should remain unchanged. Any necessary amendments to these parts should be made through the special conditions of contracts and the appendix to instructions to the Bidders.
- 1.3 Information contained in the invitation to tender shall conform to the data and information in the tender documents to enable potential Bidders to decide whether or not to participate in the tender and shall indicate any important tender requirements.
- 1.4 The invitation to tender shall be issued as an advertisement in accordance with the regulations.

B. INVITATION TO TENDER

TENDER No. CGB/ADM/ICT/001/2019/20.

TENDER NAME: TENDER FOR SUPPLY, DELIVERY, INSTALLATION, TESTING AND COMMISSIONING OF COUNTY INTERGRATED HOSPITAL MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM(CIHMIS)

- 1 The County Government of Bomet, invites sealed bids from eligible candidates for SUPPLY, DELIVERY, INSTALLATION, TESTING AND COMMISSIONING OF COUNTY INTERGRATED HOSPITAL MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM(CIHMIS)
- 1.1
- 1.2 Interested eligible candidates may obtain a complete set of tender documents from the county website **www.bomet.go.ke/downloads/tenders.**
- 1.3 Prices quoted should be net inclusive of all taxes, must be in Kenya Shillings and shall remain valid for Goods/Services days from the closing date of the tender.
- 1.4 Completed tender documents are to be enclosed in plain sealed envelopes marked with "Tender Name" and the "Tender Number" and addressed to:

The County Secretary County Government of Bomet P.O. Box 19-20400 Bomet

And be deposited in the Tender Box located at the County Supply Chain Management Offices in Bomet County Headquarters so as to be received on or before **Friday 6th March 2020** at **12.00 noon**.

1.5 Tenders will be opened immediately thereafter in the presence of the Candidates or their representatives who choose to attend at the at the **County Procurement Office in Bomet County Headquarters.**

Director Supply Chain Management County Government of Bomet For: County Secretary

SECTION II: INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

A. GENERAL:

2.1 Definition

(i) "Bidder" means any persons, joint venture, consortium, partnership, firm or company submitting a sum or sums in the Bills of Quantities in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders, Conditions of Contract Parts I and II, Specifications, Drawings and Bills if Quantities for the work contemplated, acting directly or through a legally appointed representative.

(ii) Any noun or adjective derived from the word "bidder" shall be read and construed to mean the corresponding from of the noun or adjective "bid". Any conjugation of the verb "tender" shall be read and construed to mean the corresponding form of the verb "bid"

(iii)"Procuring Entity" means the County Government of Bomet

2.2 Eligibility and Qualification Requirement

- (a) This Invitation for Tenders is open to all bidders who have paid the mandatory tender document fee.
- (b) The Successful bidder. Joint Venture/ Consortia shall supply, delivery, installation, testing and commissioning of County Integrated Hospital Management Information System by the intended completion date specified in the tender documents.
- (c) Bidders shall provide qualification statement that the bidder (including all members of a joint venture and subcontractors) is not associated in the past, directly or indirectly with a firm or any of its affiliates which have been engaged by the Procuring entity to provide consulting services for the preparation of the design, specifications and other documents to be used for the procurement of the goods and services under this Tender.
- (d) Bidders involved in corrupt or fraudulent practices or debarred from participating in public procurement shall not be eligible.

2.2.1 Joint Venture / Consortium

Proposals submitted by a Joint venture / Consortium of two or more firms as partners shall comply with the following Requirements:

- (a) The Tender and in case of a successful proposal, the contract form or a teaming agreement shall be signed so as to be legally binding on all partners. None of the partners of the Joint Venture / Consortium is also a partner in another Joint Venture / Consortium shall be rejected.
- (b) One of the partners shall be nominated as lead contractor, and this authorization shall be evidenced by submitting a power of attorney signed by legally authorized signatories of the all the partners. Information about each firm's role and participation in the Joint Venture / Consortia must be provided
- (c) The lead contractor shall be authorized to incur liabilities and receive instructions for and on behalf of any and all the partners of the Joint

Venture / Consortium and the entire execution of the contract including payment shall be done exclusively to the lead contractor

- (d) All partners of the Joint Venture / Consortium shall be liable jointly and severally for the execution of the contract in accordance with the contract terms and a relevant statement to this effect shall be included in the authorization mentioned in (b) above as well as in the form of Tender and the contract form (in case of the accepted proposal)
- (e) The agreement entered into by the Joint Venture / Consortium partners for the purpose of this TENDER shall be submitted with the proposal.

2.2.1 Non-Eligibility

The procuring entity employees, committee members, board members and their relatives (spouse and children) are not eligible to participate in the Tender.

2.2.2 False information

A bidder who gives false information in the Tender document about its qualification or who refuses to enter into a contract after notification of contract award shall be considered for debarment from participating in future public procurement.

2.2.3 Mandatory Requirements

Interested bidders should note that only those meeting the criteria indicated below as a minimum supported by the relevant documents at submission will be considered for further evaluation:

- (a) Provide certified copies of their Certificate of Registration or Incorporation and Business permit
- (b) Meet Statutory requirements including valid Tax Compliance, VAT Registration, PIN Certificate
- (c) **Certified** copies of their audited financial accounts for the immediate past three (3) years. This is applicable to sole bidders and all partners in a joint venture / consortium
- (d) The tender must be submitted with insurance bid bond or an unconditional bank guarantee from duly recognized financial institutions registered in Kenya, at 2% of the total contract value. This bid bond should be valid for 120 days after the proposal submission date.
- (e) A duly executed agreement if two or more firms are jointly responding to the tender being evidence of the said firm's collaboration. The agreement should indicate the nature and duration of the partnership.
- (f) The declaration form should be signed by the authorized signatory of the bidder
- (g) Duly filled, stamped and signed confidential questionnaire
- (h) Bids should be submitted both online through the IFMIS system vide the given negotiation Number and manually where

hard copies are deposited in the tender box located at the Procurement office on the dates indicated.

Note: Any Bidder, Joint Venture/Consortium failing to meet any of the above requirements will be declared non-responsive and will not be considered for further evaluation

2.3 Eligible Equipment

- 2.3.1 All Goods/Services to be supplied and installed under the contract shall have their origin in eligible source countries.
- 2.3.2 For purposes of this clause, "origin" means the place where the Goods/Services(s) are produced. Goods are produced when, through manufacturing, processing, or substantial and major assembly of components, a commercially-recognized product results that is substantially different in basic characteristics or in purpose or utility from its components
- 2.3.3 The origin of Goods/Services is distinct from the nationality of the Bidder and shall be treated thus in the evaluation of the tender.

2.4 Goods Eligibility and Conformity to TENDER Document

- 2.4.1 Pursuant to paragraph 2.3 of this section, the bidder shall furnish, as part of its Proposal establishing the eligibility and conformity to the TENDER documents of all equipment which the bidder proposes to supply under the contract.
- 2.4.2 The documentary evidence of the eligibility of the goods shall consist of statement in the price schedule of the country of origin of the goods and services offered which shall be confirmed by a certificate of origin issued at the time of shipment

2.5 The documentary evidence of conformity

The documentary evidence of conformity of the equipment to the TENDER documents may be in the form of literature, drawings, data sheets and shall consist of:

(a) A detailed description of the essential technical and performance characteristic of the equipment

(b) A clause-by-clause commentary on the procuring entity's Technical Specifications demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the goods and service to those specifications, or a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Technical Specifications

2.5.1 For purposes of the commentary to be furnished pursuant to paragraph 2.4.1 above, the bidder shall note that standards for workmanship, material, and equipment as well as references to brand names or catalogue numbers designated by the Procuring Entity in its Technical Specifications, are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may substitute alternative standards, brand names, and/or catalogue numbers in its proposal provided that it demonstrates to the procuring entity's satisfaction that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or better than those designated in the Technical Specifications.

2.6 Site Visits

- 2.6.1 The bidder(s) must familiarize themselves with local conditions and take them into account in preparing their proposals. To obtain first-hand information on the assignment and on the local conditions, bidders are encouraged to liaise with the Procuring entity regarding any information that they may require before submitting the proposal. Bidders should contact the office of the Director of Supplies Chain Management, County Government of Bomet to arrange for site visits or obtain additional information. Bidders should ensure that these officials are advised of the visit in adequate time to allow them to make appropriate arrangements.
- 2.6.2 The Bidder is advised to visit and examine key sites such as the County Headquarters (ICT department), County Referral Hospital (Longisa), sub-county Health Facilities and their surrounding and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the proposal and entering into a contract. The cost of these site visits shall be catered for by Bidders.
- 2.6.3 The Procuring entity shall organize a site visit to a live and working site, where the Bidder has implemented such a solution at a date to be agreed upon by the Procuring Entity and Bidder. The cost of the visit will be by agreement between the prospective bidders and the procuring entity.

2.7 Cost of Tendering

- 2.7.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the tendering process, associated with:
 - (a) The preparation and submission of the its proposal
 - (b) Negotiating the contract
 - (c) Any visit to the County sites

B. TENDER DOCUMENT

2.8 Contents of Tender Document

- 2.8.1 The tender document comprises the documents listed below and addenda issued in accordance with clause 2.9 of these instructions to Bidders
- (i) Invitation to Tender
- (ii) Instructions to Bidders
- (iii) General Conditions of Contract
- (iv) Special Conditions of Contract
- (v) Technical Specifications
- (vi) Tender Form and Price Schedules
- (vii) Tender Security Form
- (viii) Joint Venture / Consortium Summary
- (ix) Contract Form
- (x) Performance Security Form
- (xi) Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment Form
- (xii) Manufacturer's Authorization Form
- (xiii) Confidential Business Questionnaire Form
- (xiv) Declaration form
- (xv) Details of contract of similar nature and complexity
- 2.8.2 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the tender documents. Failure to furnish all information required by the tender documents or to submit a tender not substantially responsive to the tender documents in every respect will be at the Bidders risk and may result in the rejection of its tender.

2.9 Clarification of Tender Documents

- 2.9.1 A prospective bidder making inquiries of the tender documents may notify the Procuring entity in writing or by post at the entity's address indicated in the invitation for tenders. The Procuring entity will respond in writing to any request for clarification of the tender documents, which it receives not later than seven (7) days prior to the deadline for the submission of tenders, prescribed by the procuring entity. Written copies of the Procuring entities response (including an explanation of the query but without identifying the source of inquiry) will be sent to all prospective Bidders that have received the tender document.
- 2.9.2 The procuring entity shall reply to any clarifications sought by the Bidder within 3 days of receiving the request to enable the Bidder to make timely submission of its tender.

2.10 Amendment of Tender Documents

- 2.10.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of tender, the procuring entity, for any reason, whether at its own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a prospective Bidder, may modify the tender documents by issuing an addendum.
- 2.10.2 All prospective Bidders that have obtained the tender documents will be notified of the amendment in writing or by post and will be binding on them.
- 2.10.3 In order to allow prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in preparing their tenders, the Procuring entity, at its discretion, may extend the deadline for the submission of tenders.

C. PREPARATION OF THE TENDER DOCUMENT

2.11 Language of Tender Document

2.11.1 The tender prepared by the Bidder, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the tender exchange by the Bidder and the Procuring entity, shall be written in English language, provided that any printed literature furnished by the Bidder may be written in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate English translation of the relevant passages in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the tender, the English translation shall govern.

2.12 Documents Comprising the Tender

- 2.12.1 The submission prepared by the Bidders shall comprise the following components.
 - (a) A Technical proposal submission form
 - (b) A price Schedule completed in accordance with the format and instructions given which shall be incorporated ONLY in the Financial Proposal
 - (c) Documentary evidence established in accordance with paragraph 2.4 that the goods and ancillary services to be supplied by the Bidder are eligible goods and services and conform to the tender documents; and
 - (d) Tender Security furnished in accordance with paragraph 2.16
 - (e) Confidential Business Questionnaire

2.13 Technical Proposal Submission Form

2.13.1 The Bidder shall complete the Technical Proposal Submission Form as prescribed

D. BID SUBMISSION GUIDELINES

2.14 Technical Submission Guidelines

- 2.14.1 Bidders are expected as a MINIMUM to adhere to the following stipulated guidelines in responding to the Procuring entity's requirements presented in this TENDER document.
- (a) The bidders must present description of their solution that suit the stated requirements
- (b) The detailed descriptions should be organized and cross referenced in the same manner as the Bidder's item by item, clause by clause on the detailed requirements provided in each section. The information should at a minimum include a concise response to the issue. The bid document must contain a table of content and each chapter clearly numbered, labeled and paginated. Failure to submit information in the prescribed format shall result in the bid being considered none responsive in the respective requirements.

2.15 Financial Proposal

- 2.15.1 Preparation of Financial Proposals
- (a) In preparing the Financial Proposal, bidders are expected to take into account the requirements and deliverables outlined in the TENDER document. The Financial Proposal should clearly indicate the percentage commission (fee) proposed by the bidder, if any.

2.16 Bid Currencies

All Prices shall be quoted in Kenya Shillings

2.17 Bid Security

- 2.17.1 The bidder shall furnish, as part of its proposal, a tender/bid security for the amount (percentage) and form specified in the Appendix to instructions to Bidders. The original tender/bid security shall be included in the technical proposal. The copy of the tender/bid security will be included in the financial proposal (separate envelope)
- 2.17.2 The Bid Security shall be at **2%** of the total contract value
- 2.17.3 The Bid Security is required to protect the Procuring Entity against the risk of Bidder's conduct which would warrant the security's forfeiture
- 2.17.4 The Bid Security shall be denominated in Kenya Shillings and shall be in the form of an insurance bid bond or an unconditional bank guarantee from duly recognized financial institutions registered in Kenya.
- 2.17.5 Any proposal not secured in accordance to 2.17.1 and 2.17.2 will be rejected by the Procuring entity as non-responsive
- 2.17.6 Bid Security for unsuccessful bidders will be discharged or returned as promptly as possible, not later than thirty (30) days

after expiration of the period of tender validity prescribed by the Procuring Entity

- 2.17.7 The successful Bidder's Bid Security will be discharged upon the bidder signing the contract, pursuant to paragraph 2.42 and furnishing the performance security, pursuant to paragraph 3.5, under General conditions of contract.
- 2.17.8 The Bid Security may be forfeited:
- (a) If a bidder withdraws his proposal during the period of proposal validity specified by the Procuring Entity on the Tender Form or
- (b) In the case of a successful bidder, if the bidder fails to:
 - (i) Sign the contract
 - (ii) Furnish performance security
- (c) If the bidder rejects correction of an arithmetic error in the tender

2.18 No Alternative Offers

- 2.18.1 The bidder shall submit an offer which **complies fully**, or **exceeds**, all the requirements of the TENDER documents unless otherwise provided for in the appendix. Only one proposal may be submitted by each bidder either by himself or as partner in a joint venture.
- 2.18.2 The bidder shall not attach any conditions of his own to his proposal. The price must be based on the TENDER documents.
- 2.18.3 Any bidder who fails to comply with this clause will be disqualified.
- 2.18.4 Pre-bidding Meeting
- 2.18.5 If a pre-bidding meeting is convened, the bidder's designated representative is invited to attend at the venue and time specified in the Tender. The purpose of the meeting will be to clarify issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage.
- 2.18.6 The bidder is requested to submit any question in writing or by email, to reach the procuring entity not later than seven (7) days before the meeting. It may not be practical at the meeting to answer questions received late, but questions and responses will be transmitted in accordance with the following:-Minutes of the meeting, including the text of the questions raised and the responses given together with any responses prepared after the meeting will be transmitted without delay to the purchasers of the tender documents. Any modification of the TENDER document which may become necessary as a result of the pre-bidding meeting shall be made by the Procuring entity through the minutes of the pre-bidding meeting.

2.19 Validity of Proposals

2.19.1 The Proposals shall remain valid for 90 days after date of opening prescribed by the Procuring entity, pursuant to paragraph2.26. A proposal valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Procuring entity as non-responsive.

2.19.2 In exceptional circumstances, the Procuring entity may solicit the Bidder's consent to an extension of the period of validity. The request and the responses thereto shall be made in writing. The bid security provided under paragraph 2.18.1 shall also be suitably extended. A bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its tender security. A bidder granting the request will not be required nor permitted to modify its proposal.

2.20 Format of Signing of Proposal

- 2.20.1 The Bidder shall prepare two (2) documents of the tender, clearly marking each "ORIGINAL" PROPOSAL" and "COPY OF PROPOSAL" as appropriate
- 2.20.2 The original and the copy of the proposal shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by the bidder or a person or persons duly authorized to bind the bidder to the contract. All pages of the proposal, except for un-amended printed literature, shall be initiated by the person or persons signing the proposal.
- 2.20.3 The proposal shall have no interlineations, erasures, or overwriting except as necessary to correct errors made by the bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initiated by the person or persons authorized to sign the proposals.

E. SUBMISSION OF THE TENDER DOCUMENT

- 2.21 Sealing and Marking of Proposal
 - 2.21.1 The Original and the copy of the Technical Proposal shall be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked "TECHNICAL PROPOSAL" and the original and the copy of the Financial Proposal in a sealed envelope clearly marked "FINANCIAL PROPOSAL" and warning "DO NOT OPEN WTH THE TECHNICAL PROPOSAL". Both envelopes shall be placed into an outer envelope and sealed.
 - 2.21.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
 - (a) Be addressed to the Procuring entity at the address given on the Tender
 - (b) Bear the TENDER number and name in the Tender and the words: "DO NOT OPEN BEFORE FRIDAY 6TH MARCH 2020 at 12.00 noon East African Time"
 - 2.21.3 The inner envelopes shall also indicate the name and address of the bidder to enable the proposal document to be returned unopened in case it is declared "late".

2.21.4 If the outer envelope is not sealed and marked as required by paragraph 2.23.2, the Procuring entity will assume no responsibility for the misplacement of proposals or premature opening of the documents.

2.22 Deadline for Submission of Proposals

- 2.22.1 The completed Technical and Financial Proposals must be delivered at the submission addresses on or before FRIDAY 6TH
 MARCH 2020 at 12.00 noon East African Time. Any proposal received after the closing time for submission for proposals shall be returned to the respective bidder unopened.
- 2.22.2 The Procuring entity may, at its discretion, extend this deadline for the submission of proposals by amending the TENDER documents in accordance with paragraph 2.11, in which case all rights and obligations of the Procuring entity and candidates previously subject to the deadline will therefore be subject to the deadline as extended.
- 2.22.3 Bulky proposals which will not fit in the tender box shall be received by the procuring entity at the Director of Supply Chain Management Director's office. The Bidders shall be required to sign a register indicating date and time the documents were submitted.

2.23 Modification and withdrawal of Proposals

- 2.23.1 The bidder may modify or withdraw its proposal after the proposals Submission, provided that written notice of the modification, including Substitution or withdrawal of the proposal, is received by the Procuring Entity prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of proposals.
- 2.23.2 The Bidder's modification or withdrawal notice shall be prepared, sealed, marked, and dispatched in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 2.20. A withdrawal notice may also be sent via email but followed by a signed confirmation hard copy, postmarked no later than the deadline for submission of proposals.
- 2.23.3 No proposals may be modified after the deadline for submission of proposals
- 2.23.4 No Proposals may be withdrawn in the interval between the deadlines for Submission of Proposals and the expiration of the period of proposal validity specified by the bidder on the Tender Form. Withdrawal of a proposal during this interval may result in the Bidder's forfeiture of its bid security, pursuant to paragraph 2.16.8.

F. BID OPENING AND EVALUATION

2.24 **Opening of Proposals**

- 2.24.1 After the deadline for submission of proposals, the Technical Proposal shall be opened immediately by the Tender Opening Committee. The Financial Proposal shall remain sealed and deposited with a responsible officer of the Procuring Entity
- 2.24.2 The Procuring entity will open all technical proposals in the presence of representatives who choose to attend on **Friday 6th March 2020** at **12.00 noon** East African Time in Director of Procurement's Board Room. The bidders' representatives who are present shall sign a TENDER opening register evidencing their attendance.
- 2.24.3 The bidders' names, the tender security and such other details as the Procuring entity, at its discretion may consider appropriate, will be announced at the opening.
- 2.24.4 The Procuring entity will prepare minutes of the TENDER opening.

2.25 **Process to be Confidential**

2.25.1 After the public opening of proposals, information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation and comparisons of proposals and recommendations concerning the award of Contract shall not be disclosed to bidders or other persons not officially concerned with such process until the award of Contract is announced. All bidders should observe all the terms and conditions stated in the Non- Disclosure Agreement which they signed.

2.26 Clarification of Proposals

- 2.26.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation and comparison of tenders the Procuring entity may, at its discretion, ask the Bidder for a clarification of its tender. The request for clarification and the response shall be in writing, and no change in the prices or substance of the tender shall be sought, offered, or permitted.
- 2.26.2 Any effort by the Bidder to influence the Procuring entity in the Procuring entity's tender evaluation, tender comparison or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of the Bidders' tender.

2.27 Evaluation of Tender Bids

2.27.1 The evaluation of the TENDER will be conducted in two stages:

(a) The Technical Proposal for the TENDER shall be subjected to two levels of evaluation:

- i. Preliminary technical examination
- ii. Detailed technical evaluation
- iii. Demo Presentation of the solution
- 2.27.2 The Technical proposals evaluation committee shall evaluate the technical proposal of the TENDER within 15 days of the validity period from the date of opening the proposals
- 2.27.3 The Financial proposals evaluation committee will conduct the financial evaluation on the responsive bidder's financial proposals within 5 days from the day of Financial Proposals documents' opening

2.28 Evaluation of Technical Proposals

2.28.1 Preliminary Examination of Technical Proposals

(i) Responsiveness to requirements

- (a) Prior to the detailed evaluation of proposals, the procuring entity will determine whether each proposal is substantially responsive to the requirements of the Tender document. The Evaluation Committee will review each proposal for substantial responsiveness and completeness.
- (b) Failure by any bidder to meet any of the mandatory requirements will result in automatic disqualification of the bidder. Bidders that qualify at preliminary stage shall then be evaluated and ranked on the basis of the detailed technical and functional aspects of the proposals.
- (c) If a bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the Procuring Entity.

(ii) Determination of Responsiveness

- (a) For the purpose of this clause, a substantially responsive bid is one which conforms to all the terms, conditions and specifications of the TENDER documents without material deviation or reservation. A material deviation or reservation is one which affects in any substantial way the scope, quality, completion time or administration of the Project to be undertaken by the bidder under the Contract, or which limits in any substantial way inconsistent with the proposal documents, the Procuring entities' rights or the bidder obligations under the Contract and the rectification of which would affect unfairly the competitive position of other bidders who have presented substantially responsive bids.
- (b) The Procuring entity may waive any minor informality or nonconformity or irregularity in a tender which does not constitute a material deviation, provided such waiver does not prejudice or affect the relative ranking of any bidder.

2.28.2 Detailed Evaluation of Technical proposals

- (a) The procuring entity will evaluate and compare the technical proposals which have been determined to be substantially responsive pursuant to Paragraph 2.27.1(a) and 2.27.1(b).
- (b) Bidders meeting the above criteria will be subjected to a detailed evaluation by the Evaluation Committee. As part of its detailed evaluation, the Evaluation Committee will consider the extent to which the bidders have addressed the system requirements including compliance to the relevant national and international standards.
- (c) In the Detailed Evaluation of Technical Proposal, the criteria have been assigned weights or scores for the purpose of determining the overall level of compliance to the technical requirements.
- (d) Each responsive proposal will be given a Technical Score (St). A proposal shall be rejected at this stage if it does not respond to important aspects of the specifications or if it fails to achieve the minimum technical score
- (e) The technically responsive bidders after the technical evaluation will be required to make demo presentation of their proposed solution and an objective evaluation criterion set to rank the bidders. The demo presentation score will constitute 10% of overall technical score.

2.29 Detailed Technical Evaluation criteria

- (i) **Right of Acceptance and Rejection:** The County Government of Bomet reserves the right to accept any or all proposals and to waive any formalities, informalities and deviations, which, in its opinion best serve the interests of the County. The County Government of Bomet is not bound to accept your proposal
- (ii) **Vendor Selection**: It is the intent of the County Government of Bomet to select only responsible and responsive bidder
- (iii) **Basis of Award**: An evaluation team will judge the merit of proposals received in accordance with the general criteria defined within this document. The following criteria will be taken into consideration when making evaluations of proposals.

Туре	Scope	Scores (%) / Weight	Overall Compliance
Preliminary evaluation	Compliance evaluation	Pass or Fail	Vendors who do not comply with the mandatory requirements will be eliminated at this stage
Technical evaluation	Desktop Review/ Evaluation	20%	Vendors will move to the demo stage subject to

Evaluation Criteria

	Demonstration of solution All claims by the vendor shall be subject of confirmation through a site visit.	60%	attaining a score of 15% (out of 20%) from the Desktop Review/ evaluation All vendors will proceed to the Financial evaluation stage subject to an overall combined technical score (Desktop and Demonstration) of 64% out of 80%
Financial evaluation (20%)		20%	
Total		100%	

Preliminary Examination of Technical Proposals

(iii) Responsiveness to requirements

- (a) Prior to the detailed evaluation of proposals, the procuring entity will determine whether each proposal is substantially responsive to the requirements of the Tender document. The Evaluation Committee will review each proposal for substantial responsiveness and completeness.
- (b) Failure by any bidder to meet any of the mandatory requirements will result in automatic disqualification of the bidder. Bidders that qualify at preliminary stage shall then be evaluated and ranked on the basis of the detailed technical and functional aspects of the proposals.
- (c) If a bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the Procuring Entity.

(iv) Mandatory Requirements

Interested bidders should note that only those meeting the criteria indicated below as a minimum supported by the relevant documents at submission will be considered for further evaluation:

(a) Provide certified copies of their Certificate of Registration or Incorporation and Business permit

- (b) Meet Statutory requirements including valid Tax Compliance, VAT Registration, PIN Certificate
- (c) **Certified** copies of their audited financial accounts for the immediate past three (3) years. This is applicable to sole bidders and all partners in a joint venture / consortium
- (d) The tender must be submitted with insurance bid bond or an unconditional bank guarantee from duly recognized financial institutions registered in Kenya, at 2% of the total contract value. This bid bond should be valid for 120 days after the proposal submission date.
- (e) A duly executed agreement if two or more firms are jointly responding to the tender being evidence of the said firm's collaboration. The agreement should indicate the nature and duration of the partnership.
- (f) The declaration form should be signed by the authorized signatory of the bidder
- (g) Duly filled, stamped and signed confidential questionnaire.
- (h) Bids should be submitted both online through the IFMIS system vide the given negotiation Number and manually where hard copies are deposited in the tender box located at the Procurement office on the dates indicated.

Note: Any Bidder, Joint Venture/Consortium failing to meet any of the above requirements will be declared nonresponsive and will not be considered for further evaluation

Technical Requirements Evaluation

Notes:

(i) Technical capability which will be assessed through desktop evaluation, solution demonstration and site visits based on the weights above will scored as follows:

a. DESKTOP EVALUATION

	Technical Evaluation Criteria (DESKTOP EVALUATION) (20 MKS)	Overall	Rating
1	Qualifications and Experience of the Firm	10	
	• Number of years of experience of the firm		
	(1mks)		
	• Relevant projects undertaken by the		
	firm. Added advantage for county based		
	HMIS (2mks)		
	• ISO Health Certifications & HIPPA		

	Compliance (7mks)	
2	 Implementation methodology Detailed Work plan (2 mks) Training plan and approach (3 mks) Service management (5 mks) 	10
3	Detailed description of the bidder's compliance to the detailed system requirements	30
4	Support for Multiple Health Facilities	10
5	Must Support multiple payment channels e.g. 3 cash, e-wallet, mobile money, Debit/Credit Cards	
6	Must have in-built audit trails and security features	6
7	Must have dynamic and robust reporting capabilities including Dashboards, Business Intelligence, etc	6
	To convert back to 20% for the total Desktop Review	75

b. **DEMONSTRATION**

	Technical Evaluation Criteria (DEMONSTRATION) (60 MKS)	Overall	Rating
1	Compliance to the detailed system requirements (Modules, integration, Reporting, Functionalities, etc)	30	
2	Support for Multiple Health Facilities	10	
3	Support for multiple payment channels e.g. cash, e-wallet, mobile money	3	
4	Built in audit trails and security features	5	
5	Dynamic and robust reporting capabilities including Dashboards, Business Intelligence, etc	7	
6	Additional Features/Add ins/Unique innovations	5	
	Total - 60% for the total technical	60	

2.30 <u>Technical Evaluation</u>

It is only bidders who shall have attained a score of 80% (64/80) and above in the detailed technical evaluation will proceed to the next stage of financial evaluation.

2.31 Public Opening of Financial Proposals

- 2.31.1 After Technical Proposal evaluation, the procuring entity shall notify those bidders whose proposals did not meet the minimum qualifying mark or were considered non-responsive to the TENDER indicating that their Financial Proposals will be returned unopened upon completion of the award process. The Procuring entity shall simultaneously notify the bidders who have secured the minimum qualifying mark, indicating the date and time set for opening the Financial Proposals and stating that the opening ceremony is open to those bidders who choose to attend. The opening date shall be within seven (7) days after the notification date. The notification may be sent by registered letter or electronic mail.
- 2.31.2 The Financial Proposals shall be opened publicly in the presence of the bidders representatives who choose to attend. The name of the bidder, the technical scores and the proposed prices shall be read aloud and recorded when the Financial Proposals are opened. The Procuring entity shall prepare minutes of the public opening.

2.32 Preliminary Evaluation of the Financial Proposal

- 2.32.1 The evaluation committee will determine whether the financial proposals are complete (i.e. whether the bidder has provided the tender security as required, whether the bidder has considered all the items of the corresponding Technical Proposal and correct any computational errors.
- 2.32.2 Bidders who will not completely and comprehensively cost all items of the TENDER shall be deemed non-responsive.

2.33 Conversion to Single Currency

Where other currencies are used, the Procuring Entity will convert those currencies to Kenya Shillings using the Central Bank of Kenya selling exchange rate on the date of tender opening for the financial proposal for the purpose of evaluation.

2.34 Correction of Errors

- 2.34.1 Bids determined to be substantially responsive shall be checked by the Procuring Entity for any arithmetic errors in the computations and summations. Errors will be corrected by the procurement entity as follows:
- a. Where there is a discrepancy between the amount in figures and the amount in words, the amount in words will govern.

b. Where there is discrepancy between the unit rate and the line item total resulting from Multiplying; the unit rate by the quantity, the unit rate as quoted will prevail, unless in the opinion of the Procuring Entity, there is an obvious typographical error, in which case adjustment will be made to the entry containing that error

c. The amount stated in the proposal will be adjusted in accordance with the above procedure for the correction of errors and, with concurrence of the bidder, shall be considered as binding upon the bidder. If the bidder does not accept the corrected amount, the bid shall be rejected and the bid Security may be forfeited in accordance with clause 2.16.8

2.35 Evaluation and Comparison of the Financial Proposals

- 2.35.1 The Procuring Entity will evaluate only bids determined to be substantially responsive to the requirements of the proposal documents in accordance with clauses 2.28.
- 2.35.2 The Procuring entity's evaluation of a financial proposal will take into account the following factors;
- a. Comprehensive scope of work.
- b. Project schedule detailed in the proposal

c. The proposed fee as one off mobilization fee and Annual Maintenance Costs (AMC)

2.35.3 The Procuring entity requires that the system under the Tender shall be deployed at the time specified in the Schedule of Requirements. Proposals offering deliveries longer than the procuring entity's required delivery time will be treated as non-responsive and rejected.

The formulae for determining the Financial Score (S_f) shall be as follows:

 $S_f = 20 \times F_m / F$

Where S_f is the financial score; F_m is the lowest priced financial proposal and F is the price of the proposal under consideration.

Proposals will be ranked according to their combined technical (S_t) and financial scores (S_f) using the weights (T=the weight given to the Technical Proposal: P = the weight given to the Financial Proposal; T + P = 1) and the combined technical and financial score, S, is calculated as follows: -

$$S = S_t \times T\% + S_f \times P\%$$

The bidder achieving the highest combined technical and financial score will be recommended for award of contract after due diligence and site visits has been undertaken on the same bidder.

2.36 Contacting the Procuring Entity

- 2.36.1 From the time the proposals are opened to the time the contract is awarded the bidders should not contact the procuring entity on any matter related to its Technical and / or Financial Proposal.
- 2.36.2 Any effort by the bidders to influence the Procuring Entity in the examination, evaluation and ranking of proposals and recommendations for award of contract may result in the rejection of the bidder's proposal.

2.37 Due Diligence

- 2.37.1 The procuring entity shall undertake due diligence on the successful bidder prior to negotiations leading to entering into contract
- 2.37.2 The purpose of the due diligence will be to ascertain the bidder's capability to undertake the project in accordance to the requirements of the proposal documents.
- 2.37.3 An affirmative determination in due diligence will be a prerequisite for invitation to negotiations with the successful bidder leading into contract between the procuring entity and the successful bidder.

2.37.4 A negative due diligence determination will result in rejection of the bidder's proposal, in which event the procuring entity will proceed to the next highest technically and financially responsive bidder to make a similar due diligence determination of that bidder's capabilities to perform satisfactorily.

2.38 Negotiations

- 2.38.1 Negotiations will be held at Director of Procurement's Board Room. The aim is to reach agreement on all points and sign a contract.
- 2.38.2 Having selected the bidder on the basis of the technical and financial evaluation criteria and due diligence the procuring entity expects to negotiate a contract. Before contract negotiations, the Procuring entity will require assurances that the technical experts will be actually available. The Procuring entity will not consider substitutions during contract negotiations unless both parties agree that undue delay in the selection process makes such substitution unavoidable or that such changes are critical to meet the objectives of the project. If this is not the case and if it is established that key staff were offered in the proposal without confirming their availability, the bidder may be disqualified.
- 2.38.3 Negotiations will include a discussion of the Technical Proposal, Financial proposal, the proposed methodology (work plan), staffing and any suggestions made by the firm to improve the implementation of the project. The agreed work plan and final technical specifications will then be incorporated in the "Description of Services" and form part of the Contract.
- 2.38.4 The negotiations will conclude with a review of the draft form of the Contract. To complete negotiations the Procuring entity and the selected firm will initial the agreed Contract. If negotiations fail, the Procuring entity will invite the firm whose proposal received the second highest score to negotiate a contract.

2.39 Award of Contract

2.39.1 The Contract will be awarded after affirmative determination in the due diligence and successful negotiations between the procuring entity and the successful bidder. The Procuring entity will promptly notify other bidders who participated after the negotiations that they were unsuccessful and return the Financial Proposals of those bidders who did not pass the technical evaluation.

The parties to the contract shall have it signed within 30 days from the date of notification of contract award unless there is an administrative review request.

2.40 **Procuring Entity's Right to vary Quantities**

The procuring entity reserves the right at the time of the contract award to increase or decrease the quantity of goods originally specified in the scheduled requirements without any change in Unit Price or other terms and condition

2.41 Procuring Entity's Right to Accept or Reject Any or All Proposals

- 2.41.1 The Procuring entity reserves the right to accept or reject any proposal, and to annul the process and reject all proposals at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected bidder or bidder of the grounds for the procuring entity's action.
- 2.41.2 The procuring entity may at any time terminate procurement proceedings before contract award and shall not be liable to any person for the termination
- 2.41.3 The procuring entity shall give prompt notice of the termination to the bidders and on request give the reasons for termination within 14 days of receiving the request from any bidder.
- 2.41.4 A bidder who gives false information in the TENDER document about his/her qualification or who refuses to enter into a contract after notification of contract award shall be considered for debarment from participating in future public procurement.

2.42 Notification of Award and Signing of the Contract

- 2.42.1 Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity prescribed by the Procuring Entity, the Procuring Entity will notify the successful bidder in writing that his proposal has been accepted.
- 2.42.2 Notification of award will constitute the formation of the Contract subject to the parties signing the contract.
- 2.42.3 Within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the Letter of Acceptance from the Procuring Entity the successful bidder shall sign the form and return it to the Procuring Entity together with the required Performance Security.
- 2.42.4 Failure of the successful bidder to comply with the requirements shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the tender security, in which event the Procuring entity may make the award to the next lowest evaluated bidder or call for new tenders.
- 2.42.5 The parties to the contract shall have it signed within 30 days from the date of notification of contract award unless there is an administrative review request.

2.43 **Performance Guarantee**

- 2.43.1 The Performance Security to be provided by the successful bidder shall be an insurance bid bond or an unconditional bank guarantee from duly recognized financial institutions registered in Kenya, convertible currency acceptable to the procuring entity and shall be in the form of a bank guarantee.
- 2.43.2 Failure of the successful bidder to lodge the required performance security shall constitute a breach of contract and sufficient grounds for annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bid security and any remedy under the contract.
- 2.43.3 The performance security will be discharged by the Procuring entity and returned to the bidder not later than thirty (30) days following the date of completion of the Bidder's performance obligations under the Contract, including any warranty obligations, under the Contract.
- 2.43.4 Any financial loss or reduction of county monthly revenue occasioned by the non-performance of the system based on the proposed system implementation and capability will be charged

back to the supplier of the system and serious breach will result to cancellation of award/contract and refund forfeiting of the performance bond.

2.44 Advance Payment

2.44.1 An advance payment if approved by the procuring entity shall be made under the contract in accordance with the conditions of contract.

2.45 Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices

- 2.45.1 The procuring entity requires that bidders observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process and execution of contracts. A bidder shall sign a declaration that he has and will not be involved in corrupt or fraudulent practices.
- 2.45.2 The Procuring entity will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for the contract in question.
- 2.45.3 Further a bidder who is found to have indulged in corrupt or fraudulent practices risks being debarred from participating in public procurement in Kenya

2.46 Price of the Tender Document

For those who will require hard copy tender documents, the price to be charged shall be Kshs. 1,000/-. Downloaded documents will not be charged.

2.47 Tender Document information

The Procuring entity shall allow the bidder to obtain further information and inspect the TENDER Document free of charge.

2.48 More Instructions

Bidders should be aware of the provisions stated in the General Conditions of Contract and the Special Conditions of Contract.

2.49 Appendix to Instructions to Bidders

2.49.1 The following information regarding the particulars of the bidder shall complement, supplement or amend the provisions of the instructions to bidders. Wherever there is a conflict between the provision of the instructions to bidders and the provisions of the appendix, the provisions of the appendix herein shall prevail over those of the instructions to bidders.

INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERERS (ITT) REFERENCE	PARTICULARS OF APPENDIX TO INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERS	
ITT-1.1.1	 The name of the client is: - County Government of Bomet. The eligible firms are those capable of Supply, Delivery Installation and Commissioning of County Integrated Hospital Management information System as provided in the Price Schedule-Section (VI). Location/Delivery Point(s): - County Government of Bomet Hospitals 	
ITT-2.2.2	The cost of the tender documents is Kshs1 , 000/= per set of Tender Document if printed a copy from County offices. Otherwise free when downloaded from County Website	
ITT-2.3.1	Tender validity period: - 120 days from the date of Tender opening.	
ITT-2.3.2	Prices quoted shall be in Kenya Shillings.	
ITT-2.3.3	Submit Tender documents in Original & Copy and in the recommended format.	
ITT-2.3.4	Submission deadline-: Not later than Friday 6 th March 2020 at , 12.00 noon and be deposited in the Tender Box situated at the Procurement Office, County Government of Bomet	
ITT-2.3.5	Bulky Tender Documents shall be submitted on the date of Tender Closing and be placed in the space to be placed at the space provided by the Officer assigned to handle the duty	
ITT-2.3.6	Opening of Tenders on, Friday 6th March 2020 at 12.00 noon in presence of tenderers' representatives who choose to attend.	

SECTION III - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

3.0 **Definitions**

3.0.1 In this Contract, the following terms shall be interpreted as indicated:-

- (a) "The Contract" means the agreement entered into between the Procuring entity and the Bidder, as recorded in the Contract Form signed by the parties, including all attachments and appendices thereto and all documents incorporated by reference therein.
- (b) "The Contract Price" means the price payable to the Bidder under the Contract for the full and proper performance of its contractual obligations
- (c) "The Goods" means all of the Goods/Services, machinery, and/or other materials, which the Bidder is required to supply to the Procuring entity under the Contract.
- (d) "The Procuring entity" means the organization purchasing the Goods/Services under this Contract.
- (e) "The Bidder' means the individual or firm supplying the Goods under this Contract.

3.1 Application

3.1.1 These General Conditions shall apply in all Contracts made by the Procuring entity for the procurement installation and commissioning of Goods/Services to the extent that they are not superseded by provisions of other part of contract.

3.2 **Country of Origin**

- 3.2.1 For purposes of this clause, "Origin" means the place where the Goods were mined, grown or produced.
- 3.2.2 The origin of Goods and Services is distinct from the nationality of the Bidder and will be treated thus in the evaluation of the tender.

3.3 Standards

3.3.1 The Goods supplied under this Contract shall conform to the standards mentioned in the Technical Specifications.

3.4 Use of Contract Documents and Information

3.4.1 The Candidate shall not, without the Procuring entity's prior written consent, disclose the Contract, or any provision therefore, or any specification, plan, drawing, pattern, sample, or information furnished by or on behalf of the Procuring entity in connection therewith, to any person other than a person employed by the Bidder in the performance of the Contract.

- 3.4.2 The Bidder shall not, without the Procuring entity's prior written consent, make use of any document or information enumerated in paragraph 3.5.1 above
- 3.4.3 Any document, other than the Contract itself, enumerated in paragraph 3.5.1 shall remain the property of the Procuring entity and shall be returned (all copies) to the Procuring entity on completion of the Bidder's performance under the Contract if so required by the Procuring entity

3.5 Patent Rights

3.5.1 The Bidder shall indemnify the Procuring entity against all third-party claims of infringement of patent, trademark, or industrial design rights arising from use of the Goods or any part thereof in the Procuring entity's country

3.6 Performance Security

- 3.6.1 Within twenty-eight (28) days of receipt of the notification of Contract award, the successful Bidder shall furnish to the Procuring entity with a 5% performance security where applicable in the amount specified in Special Conditions of Contract.
- 3.6.2 The proceeds of the performance security shall be payable to the Procuring entity as compensation for any loss resulting from the Bidder's failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.
- 3.6.3 The performance security shall be denominated in the currency of the contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the procuring entity and shall be in the form of
 - a) Bank guarantee
 - b) Insurance Performance Bond
 - c) Letter of credit
- 3.6.4 The performance security will be discharged by the Procuring entity and returned to the Candidate not late than thirty (30) days following the date of completion of the Bidder's performance obligations under the Contract.

3.7 Inspection and Tests

3.7.1 The Procuring entity or its representative shall have the right to inspect and/or to test the Goods/Services to confirm their conformity to the Contract specifications. The Procuring entity shall notify the Bidder in

writing in a timely manner, of the identity of any representatives retained for these purposes.

- 3.7.2 The inspections and tests may be conducted in the premises of the Bidder. All reasonable facilities and assistance, including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the inspectors at no charge to the Procuring entity.
- 3.7.3 Should any inspected or tested Goods/Services fail to conform to the Specifications, the Procuring entity may reject the Goods/Services, and the Bidder shall either replace the rejected Goods/Services or make alterations necessary to make specification requirements free of costs to the Procuring entity.
- 3.7.4 The Procuring entity's right to inspect test and where necessary, reject the Goods/Services after the Goods/Services arrival and installation shall in no way be limited or waived by reason of the Goods/Services having previously been inspected, tested and passed by the Procuring entity or its representative prior to the Goods/Services delivery.
- 3.7.5 Nothing in paragraph 3.8 shall in any way release the Bidder from any warranty or other obligations under this Contract.

3.8 Packing

- 3.8.1 The Bidder shall provide such packing and packaging of the Goods/Services as is required to prevent their damage or deterioration during transit to their final destination, as indicated in the Contract.
- 3.8.2 The packing, marking, and documentation within and outside the packages shall comply strictly with such special requirements as shall be expressly provided for in the Contract

3.9 Delivery and Documents

3.9.1 Delivery of the Goods/Services, documents and installation of the same shall be made by the Bidder in accordance with the terms specified by Procuring entity in its Schedule of Requirements and the Special Conditions of Contract

3.10 Insurance

3.10.1 The Goods/Services supplied under the Contract shall be fully insured against loss or damage incidental to manufacturer or acquisition, transportation, storage, and delivery in the manner specified in the Special conditions of contract.

3.11 Payment

- 3.11.1 The method and conditions of payment to be made to the Bidder under this Contract shall be specified in Special Conditions of Contract
- 3.11.2 Payments shall be made promptly by the Procuring entity as specified in the contract

3.12 Prices

- 3.12.1 Prices charged by the Bidder for Goods/Services delivered and installation performed under the Contract shall not, with the exception of any price adjustments authorized in Special Conditions of Contract, vary from the prices by the Bidder in its tender.
- 3.12.2 Contract price variations shall not be allowed for contracts not exceeding one year (12 months)
- 3.12.3 Where contract price variation is allowed, the variation shall not exceed 15% of the original contract price.
- 3.12.4 Price variation requests shall be processed by the procuring entity within 30 days of receiving the request.

3.13 Assignment

The Bidder shall not assign, in whole or in part, its obligations to perform under this Contract, except with the Procuring entity's prior written consent

3.14 Sub contracts

3.14.1 The Bidder shall notify the Procuring entity in writing of all subcontracts awarded under this Contract if not already specified in the tender. Such notification, in the original tender or later, shall not relieve the Bidder from any liability or obligation under the Contract

3.15 Termination for Default

- 3.15.1 The Procuring entity may, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Contract, by written notice of default sent to the Bidder, terminate this Contract in whole or in part
 - (a) if the Bidder fails to deliver any or all of the Goods/Services within the period specified in the Contract, or within any extension thereof granted by the Procuring entity
 - (b) if the Bidder fails to perform any other obligation(s) under the Contract
 - (c) if the Bidder, in the judgment of the Procuring entity has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the Contract
- 3.15.2 In the event the Procuring entity terminates the Contract in whole or in part, it may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it deems

appropriate, Goods/Services similar to those undelivered, and the Bidder shall be liable to the Procuring entity for any excess costs for such similar Goods/Services.

3.16 Liquidated Damages

3.16.1 If the Bidder fails to deliver and/or install any or all of the items within the period(s) specified in the contract, the procuring entity shall, without prejudice to its other remedies under the contract, deduct from the contract prices liquidated damages sum equivalent to 0.5% of the delivered price of the delayed items up to a maximum deduction of 10% of the delayed goods. After this the Bidder may consider termination of the contract.

3.17 Resolution of Disputes

- 3.17.1 The procuring entity and the Bidder shall make every effort to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the contract
- 3.17.2 If, after thirty (30) days from the commencement of such informal negotiations both parties have been unable to resolve amicably a contract dispute, either party may require that the dispute be referred for resolution to the formal mechanisms specified in the SCC.

3.18 Language and Law

3.18.1 The language of the contract and the law governing the contract shall be English language and the Laws of Kenya respectively unless otherwise specified in the SCC.

3.19 Force Majeure

3.19.1 The Bidder shall not be liable for forfeiture of its performance security or termination for default if and to the extent that it's delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure.

3.20 Notices

- 3.20.1 Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to this contract shall be sent to other party by post or by fax or Email and confirmed in writing to the other party's address specified.
- 3.20.2 A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notices effective date, whichever is later.

SPECIAL IV - SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

Notes on Special Conditions of Contract

- 4.1 The clauses in this section are intended to assist the procuring entity in providing contract-specific information in relation to corresponding clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
- 4.2 The provisions of Section IV complement the General Conditions of Contract included in Section III, specifying contractual requirements linked to the special circumstances of the procuring entity and the goods being procured. In preparing Section IV, the following aspects should be taken into consideration.
- (a) Information that complement provisions of Section III must be incorporated and
- (b) Amendments and/or supplements to provisions of Section III, as necessitated by the circumstances of the goods being procured must also be incorporated.
- 4.3 Special Conditions of Contract shall supplement the General Conditions of Contract. Whenever there is a conflict, between the GCC and the SCC, the provisions of the SCC herein shall prevail over these in the GCC.

REFERENCE OF GCC	SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	
3.10.1 Delivery of goods/service	The delivery period for the goods/service shall be within a period of 30 days and not exceeding 45 days on signing of the contract unless specifically indicated by the respective procuring entity.	
3.12.1 Terms of payment	Payment shall be made within a period of 60 days after full delivery of services or as prescribed in the contract.	
3.13.1 Prices	The prices offered shall be fixed for the period stated in the Tender Invitation.	
3.13.1 Market Survey	Award of contract will be subject to a market survey to ascertain the veracity of bid prices.	

4.4 Special conditions of contract as relates to the GCC

SECTION - V- SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS AND PRICES

Notes on Schedule of Requirements and Prices

- 5.1 The Procuring entity must state whether the contract is for procurement, installation and commissioning OR whether it is for installation and commissioning only, in which case, the Goods/Services will have been procured separately.
- 5.2 The Bidders may use additional paper as will be necessary to indicate the details of their costing including for other items not listed below but necessary for the system to perform optimally.

No.	Item Description	Quantity	Unit Price Kshs	Installation Period	Installation Price	Total Price Kshs.
001	Supply, Delivery, installation, testing & commissioning of County Integrated Hospital Information System	1				
002	Server (Specification attached in the Section VI)	1				
Total Price Kshs.						

Note: Also include the Cost of Annual Maintenance and any other charge if there

Authorized Official:

NameSignature....

Date:....

SECTION VI - TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

6.1 GENERAL

- 6.1.1 These specifications describe the basic requirements for Goods/Services. Bidders are requested to submit with their offers the detailed specifications, drawings, catalogues, etc for the products they intend to supply.
- 6.1.2 Bidders must indicate on the specifications sheets whether the Goods/Services offered comply with each specific requirement.
- 6.1.3 All the dimensions and capacities of the Goods/Services to be supplied shall not be less than those required in these specifications. Deviations from the basic requirements, if any, shall be explained in detail in writing with the offer, with supporting data such as calculation sheets, etc. The procuring entity reserves the right to reject the products, if such deviations shall be found critical to the use and operation of the products
- 6.1.4 The Bidders are requested to present information along with their offers as follows;-
 - (i) Shortest possible delivery period of each product
 - (ii) Information on proper representative and/or workshop for back-up service/repair and maintenance including their names and addresses

SECTION VII – SYSTEM AND SERVER SPECIFICATIONS

INTERGRATED COUNTYWIDE HOSPITAL MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

1. Introduction

The County Government of Bomet seeks to procure Web-based and database driven Integrated Countywide Hospital Management Information System to improve healthcare services delivery and in the management of the hospitals. The project involves the implementation of HMIS in the county and sub county levels hospitals at the County.

The objectives:

The main objectives of the Integrated HMIS are:

- To develop scalable web-based solution that is able to interlink different health facilities in the county
- Provide County Government of Bomet with the ability to monitor hospital processes on real time basis
- Improve management of patients records and better reporting

2. General Characteristics of the System

Generally, the system should be:

Web based, Simple and Easy

- Should be web based and run on any platform (Microsoft Windows, Linux, Mac). The tasks and functions should be menu driven to make it easy for a user to navigate and find targets.
- System should allow to be hosted within the County cloud infrastructure

Reliable and Secure System

- The system should enforce controls guarding against threats or possible misuses, making it safe for use over a local area network (LAN) or Wide area network (WAN)
- Should have audit trails stored for administrative purposes
- The system should be robust running on proven technologies in both the front and back end

Efficient

• System should accurately provide data as required.

Flexible

• Should integrate well with various other Information systems and should be highly customizable to the client's/user's needs.

Maintainable

• Should be easy to carry out maintenance without impacting on the County's operations.

Scalable

• Should be easy to scale up as the county health facilities are onboarded

Proposed Modules

The HMIS, on minimum, should have the following modules:

- System Administration and Security
- Outpatient Clinical Module
 - \circ Reception
 - o Triage
 - Queuing
 - \circ Doctor/Physician
- Inpatient Clinical Module
- Patient Billing Module
- Laboratory Module
- Dental Module
- Eye Clinic Module
- Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy Module
- Radiology Module
- Maternity Module
- Theatre Module
- Morgue Module
- Procurement Module
- Pharmacy
- Stock Management Module
- Biomedical Module
- Chest Clinic Module
- Renal Module
- Catering Management and Nutrition Module
- Oncology
- Public Health
- Personnel Management Module
- Accounting Module
- Reporting Module
- Management and Supervision
- Interfaces for linking to other systems such as LIMS
- In-built Help module. This is besides system documentation which should be comprehensive

Below give minimum expectations per module

a) Outpatient Registration

- Registration of new patients
- Revisiting previously registered patients
- Printing of patient's visit slip
- Reprinting of lost visit slip
- Modification of patient's bio data and other particulars by the records I/C
- Summary listing of registered patients [OPD Register]
- Support bio metric identification of patients where applicable.

i. Reception

- Registration of patients with all required details
- Viewing all the procedures done at the hospital
- Searching patients by the identification provided such as surname, other names, telephone no, email address, ID/Passport no. and other patient details.
- Management of patient information such as changing medical scheme details, employer, company etc

ii. Queuing System

- Queueing patients to different departments/rooms
- Viewing all patients, in real time, in the various rooms and also all patients currently on the queue
- Viewing the patients' waiting time and service time per department/clinic
- Queueing alert system for patients and users
- Tracking patient movement within the hospital

iii. Triage

- Input vital signs of the patient
- Reviewing previous visits vital signs
- Capturing/Reviewing of nursing notes and procedures

iv. Physician/Doctor

- Entering treatment notes
- Prescribed drugs are reflected at the pharmacy where they are collected by patients.
- Capturing diagnosis for each patient
- Patient bill is automatically updated whenever an investigation is requested or a prescription is made.
- Viewing the vital signs of the patient as pre-entered by the nurse
- Reviewing previous visits notes, prescriptions, investigation and patient history
- Prescription of drugs, order investigation and view result once posted by the relevant departments.

b) Cash Collection/Billing

- Receipting cash from both out-patients and in-patients (deposits + final bills)
- Organizing cashier's collections into shifts
- Generating daily collection's summary- all cashiers
- Generating cashiers detailed shift report- cashier's workload
- Provision for refunds and waivers
- Analyzing collection per department
- Refund should be done through the system by authorized person
- Waiver should made through system after approval of a legalized committee
- System should be able to sum all amount collected and be able reconciled or balanced with banking of the day
- Should show banking report
- System should be able to capture patient deposit and reduce his/her bill
- It should capture client statement invoice in a given period

- Tracking patients from registration up to dispensing through system
- Allow waiver and refund should be possible to be done through system

c) Out Patient Clinical Clerking

- Capturing patient's vital signs before seeing clinician
- Availing the vital signs to clinicians
- Capturing patient notes
- Systemic examination
- Generating Lab /X-ray Requests
- Reviewing a patient after lab/x-ray investigation
- Recording patient's diagnosis[ICD10 format available]
- Generating prescriptions for medicines
- Viewing a patient's file
- Booking patients for specialized outpatient clinics
- Referring patients to other facilities for specialized treatment/ handling

d) Pharmacy

- Linkage with main stores
- Creating new entries for drugs and modifying existing drug details(name, category, formulation, cost e.t.c)
- Capturing stock's opening balances
- Viewing prescriptions by OPD Clinicians
- Printing patient's prescriptions
- Dispensing prescribed drugs
- Separation of drugs stocks
- Issuing drugs in bulk to consumer departments

- Viewing revenue report for pharmacy department
- Report on short expiry, mid-term expiry and long-term expiry for available drugs
- Report on stock levels
- Automated stock fluctuation based on consumption
- Electronic stock cards [bin cards i.e. S3 forms] for tracking IN and OUT transactions for each individual stock item

e) Laboratory Department

- Able to allow carrying out Haematology, Bio-Chemistry, Serology, Parasitology, Microbiology, Blood Bamic and Immunology tests
- Recording time of sample collection, time received, condition and tags
- Recording expected Turn Around Time tests ordered
- Viewing if payments have been made for any lab test ordered
- Integration with laboratory equipment for fast reporting of lab results
- Manage all lab requests (Both Internal and external)
- Filling lab results and sending back to the doctor
- Receiving lab request from clinicians
- Recording lab test done in the detailed daily activity register
- Recording the specimens used for each investigation
- Distributing individual tests to their respective lab sections; biochemistry, serology e.t.c.
- Communicating the investigation findings to the clinicians
- Generating summary statistics for the daily activities

f) X-Ray/Radiology & CT- Scan

• Receiving x- ray request from clinicians

- Recording x-ray done in the detailed daily activity register
- Recording the number of films used per x-ray done
- Communication of the examination findings to the clinicians
- Viewing a patient's file
- Generating summary statistics for the daily activities
- Viewing revenue report for department
- Transmission of radiology films from digital x-ray equipment directly to clinician's/doctor's computer (allow image viewing using a special DICOM image viewer for comprehensive image analysis at the doctors computer)
- Radiology technologist can view if requested service has been paid for before proceeding with examination for cash paying patients.
- View patient insurance cover or Employer Company in case of company employees.
- Manage all radiology requests (Both Internal and external)
- Most radiology tests are preconfigured in the system.
- Quickly and easily fill results and send back to doctor
- Automatically generate radiology report showing time of request and time done
- Automatically append the name of technicians collecting and posting the results
- View a printable radiology report
- Store and display radiology digital images to doctors.

g) Dental Clinic

 Recording work done on the patient – teeth/ dentures issued, extraction, bridging e.t.c

- Generating the dental department detailed daily activity register
- Generating summary statistics for the daily activities
- Billing patients for the works to be done
- Viewing revenue report for the department
- Generating x-ray request
- Generating prescriptions for medicines
- Viewing a patient's file

h) Physiotherapy

- Recording work done on the patient- exercises given e.t.c
- Billing patients for the works to done
- Generating x-ray requests
- Generating prescriptions for medicines
- Viewing patient's file
- Generating the departmental daily activity register
- Generating summary statistics for the daily activities

i) Occupational Therapy

- Recording work done on the patient- exercises given e.t.c
- Billing patients for the work to be done
- Generating x-ray /lab requests
- Generating prescriptions for medicines
- Viewing a patient's file
- Generating the departmental daily activity register
- Generating summary statistics for the daily activities

j) Eye Clinic

• Recording VA- predefined values availed

- Structured Analysis of the eye- component by component with predefined values availed
- Recording diagnosis
- Billing patients for the works to be done
- Generating x-ray/ lab request
- Generating prescriptions for medicines
- Viewing a patient's file
- Generating the departmental daily activity register
- Generating summary statistics for the daily activities
- Generating periodic statistical reports as per the OSU format(Ophthalmology Service Unit of the Ministry of Health- formerly known as DOS(Division of ophthalmology Services)

k) MCH

- Recording work done on the specific MCH Register formats for FP,ANC,PNC,PMTCT,CWC, Immunization Register, Cancer screening Register{ VIA/VILI/HPV/pap Smear, HIV Exposed infant Register
- Generating x-ray/lab Requests when necessary
- Viewing a patient's file
- Generating daily activity registers- duly summarized
- Generating summary for the daily activities

1) Central Store/Stock Management Module

- Creating new entries for non- existing items in the store
- Capturing stocks for existing items
- Issuing items to consumer departments
- Report on short- term expiry and long -term expiry for available items
- Report on stock levels
- Automated stock fluctuation based on consumption

- Electronic stock cards (bin cards i.e. S3 forms) for tracking IN and OUT transactions for each individual stock item.
- Raise internal order requisitions and issue stock items between departments and storage locations.
- Track stock movement form purchases, sales, adjustments, internal transfers etc
- Stock take and adjustments
- Generate variance report
- Inter-department (storage location) stock movement reports
- Stock valuation based on first-in first-out
- Manage stock in terms of batches
- Inter-facility stock transfers
- Inter-departmental stock transfers

m) Reporting Module

In addition to the reports below, each module/unit will have specific reports

i. Medical Records

- Generating OPD Register
- Admission / Readmission of patients to various wards
- Discharging patients
- Generating reports for daily admissions and discharges
- Generating out-patient morbidity statistics [MOH 705]
- Generating hospital out-patient workload report[MOH 717]
- Booking patients for specialized clinics
- Generating reports for patients booked for a clinic on a particular date
- Blocking specific dates no to allow patients to be booked on those days for specialized clinics
- Disease indexing for inpatients

- Generating weekly disease surveillance report [MOH 505]
- All reporting tools in DHIS2 are supposed to be supported by the new HMIS [Standard reporting tools MOH]
- Departmental workloads
- Departmental registers
- Inpatient Disease index reports
- Mortality report

ii. Patient & Medical Bills Reports

- In-patient admission register
- Bed Occupancy & Bed Occupancy Rate (BOR) reports
- In-patient medical bills summary reports
- Patient medical bills analysis by insurance, company, institution and customer account

n) Inpatient Clinical Module

- View all available beds
- Admit patient to specific bed via the system
- Carry out bed and ward transfer
- Allocate bed and nursing care charges based on the bed occupied
- Add continuation notes
- Add clinical notes
- Send laboratory and radiology requests for patient
- Schedule theatre operations for patient
- Record and track patient's general observation chart
- Update patient's bill as drugs/services are administered
- Finalize bills and automatically generate patient's medical bill report.

• Discharge patient via the system and automatically generate discharge summary

i. Inpatient Registration/ Admission

- Registration / Admission of new inpatients to wards
- Revisiting previously discharged inpatients
- Modification of patient's bio data and other particulars by the records I/C
- Summary listing of registered patients/Daily inpatient Register

ii. Inpatient Clerking

- Capturing the inpatient's notes using freehand (Use Handheld Tables)- thereby completely eliminating the need for paper based files for inpatients.
- Each patient should automatically assigned an electronic file with all the relevant data capture forms availed.
- Booking a patient for theater operation(s)
- Doctor saves their work in a central server with the digitized data entry forms in the universal pdf format- thus handheld tablets do not remain with the patient's data
- Stored files can be retrieved and edited through the handheld tablets
- Stored files can be printed by relevant personnel
- Generates daily bed returns report for each ward
- Alerts raised for absconding patients
- Alerts raised for neglected patients (not attended to for a specified period)

iii. Inpatient Billing

• Generating patient's bills

- Updating existing patient's bills
- Reversing an entire patient's bills –administrative
- Printing patient invoices

o) Theatre Module

- Creation of theatre notes
- Creation of pre-operative checklist
- Creation of prescriptions
- Theatre billing
- Bookings
- Charges & payments
- Computerize registers (clinics & operation)

p) Administration

- Creating new users of the system
- Discontinuing users
- Assigning user rights and permissions
- Approval of refunds and waivers
- Viewing reports system wide
- All passwords should be encrypted
- Should have audit trail capability
- Allow sending of messages, LPOs, LSOs, RFQs online to the desired destinations.
- Auto-send reminder messages to patients that have been booked to various Specialized Clinics e.g MOPC, SOPC, GOPC, DM, and Orthopedic among others.

q) Biomedical Module

- Equipment Maintenance schedule, Check sheet, Request service slip, Job cards
- Equipment Inventory module

- Spares stock control module
- Service schedule of equipment

r) Mortuary Module

- Registration of the deceased with all the required details
- Updating the deceased's details where editing is needed
- Managing the deceased's bill for all rendered procedures
- Generating admission report for the deceased added on the system
- Processing the deceased's burial permit and receipts for inclusion on the discharge report

s) Personnel Management Module

For tracking employees records and for processing of payroll especially for casual staff whose payments are processed manually

- Employee registration
- Pay slip generation
- Payroll analysis
- Leave management
- Duty Roster
- Staff appraisal and promotions

t) Chest Clinic Module

• Management of TB cases – Screening and reporting

u) Catering Management and Nutrition Module

- Store supplies level
- Number of patients at the hospital and any that require special attention in terms of nutrition
- System should provide with anthropometric measures like weight, height, BMI

• Recording diagnosis and connection and the type of nutrition supplement given out.

v) Oncology Module

- Cleansing nuts for cliniqens
- Laboratory results /radiology results
- Nursing index notes
- Treatment plan sheets
- Pharmacy needs list
- Cancer registry and report generation
- ICD-O (For oncology)
- Finance-cost of services
- Phone for flu (mobile)
- Dry reactions
- Past medical/surgical history
- Past medication
- Known allergies
- Co-mobidites
- Past radiological/lab investigation

w) Procurement Module

- Procurement/purchase order
- Stock control
- Stock forecasting and buffer stock level settings
- Integrated interdepartmental user requisition and ordering of stores

x) Public Health

Able to track or give information on:

- Processing vaccination certificates for the clients
- Prevention of communication and non-communication diseases
- Food and water quality analysis and control
- Medical examination for all food handlers
- Public health law enforcement
- Disease surveillance and vaccination of preventable diseases

- Environmental (village, school, market, health, facilities) sanitation
- Pest and vermin control
- Approval of building plans and supervision of its construction
- Solid and liquid management

y) Renal Unit

Should at least allow:

- Filling of haemodialysis progress charts.
- Keeping of patients details.
- Booking / scheduling of its patients for dialysis.
- Keeping of number of patients enrolled on renal unit.
- Admission and discharge of renal patients, manually.
- Recording of absconder patients
- Keeping records of deaths of its clients
- Keeping records of referrals in and referrals out
- Keep records of dialysis sessions done and glucostix used.

z) Accounting Module

- Have Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable
- View statement per institution
- Allocate invoices once payment is received and automatically knocks out from pending invoices.
- Cash management (Petty cash, cash transfers, banking)
- Bank deposits management
- Bank reconciliation
- View actual expenditure against allocated disbursement

i. Accounts Payable

- Accounts payable ledger
- Suppliers ledger
- Age analysis report of creditors and debtors
- Automated payment vouchers & remittance for payments
- Should have the ability to merge GRNs, LPOs, delivery notes and the invoices

aa)Integration with existing systems – NHIF, DHIS2, LIMS, Cancer Reg, Revenue Collection and Management System, GIS, etc

Server Specifications

G10 Server			
Processor			
Processor name	Intel Xeon Gold 6140, 6GHz 18-core 2P 128GB-R Serve		
	Memory		
Memory (Max)	2TB, RDIMMs DDR3 or UDIMMs DDR3		
Memory slots	18 DIMM slots		
Cache Memory	24.75MB		
Storage Controller	HPE Smart Array P204b-I (12G SAS, 1GB FBWC		
	Storage and Network		
Hard Drives installed	Up to 24 SFF or 14 LFF SAS/SATA. Recommended capacity: At least 1.5 TB (5x300GB); RAID		
Network Controller	HPE 10 Gb 536FLB Flex Fabric adapter, 2-ports per controller		
Monitor	21"		
Deployment			
Power Supply	(2) 1400-Watt CS high efficiency		
Form Factor (fully configured)	4U		
Warranty	3 years with 3 years full support and 3 years parts supply		

Additional Requirements

- Ms Windows Server 2008/12 Standard edition
- 1.4 KvA UPS

SECTION VIII - STANDARD FORMS

Notes on the Standard Forms:

8.1 Technical Proposal Submission Form

This form must be completed by the Bidder and submitted with the tender documents. It must also be duly signed by duly authorized representative of the Bidder.

8.2 Confidential Business Questionnaire Form

This form must be completed by the Bidder and submitted with tender documents

8.3 Tender Security Form

When required by the tender document the Bidder shall provide the tender security either in the form included therein after or in another format acceptable to the procuring entity.

8.4 Contract Form

The Contract form shall not be completed by the Bidder at the time of submitting the Bidder at the time of submitting the tender. The contract form shall be completed after contract award.

8.5 Performance Security form

The performance security form should not be completed by the Bidder at the time of tender preparation. Only the successful Bidder will be required to provide performance security in the sum provided herein or in another form acceptable to the procuring entity.

8.6 Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment.

When there is an agreement to have Advance payment, this form must be duly completed.

8.7 Manufacturer's Authorization Form

When required by the tender document, this form must be completed and submitted with the tender document. This form will be completed by the manufacturer of the goods where the tender is an agent.8.8 Form of tender

8.8 Letter of Notification of Award

- 8.9 Declaration Form
- 8.10 Details of Sub-contractors
- 8.11 Form of written Power-of-Attorney (s)
- 8.12 Forms

8.13 FORM OF TENDER

TO: _____[Name of Employer) _____[Date]

_____[Name of Contract]

Dear Sir,

- In accordance with the Conditions of Contract, Specifications, Drawings and Bills of Quantities for the execution of the above named Works, we, the undersigned offer to construct, install and complete such Works and remedy any defects therein for the sum of Kshs.______[Amount in figures]Kenya Shillings______[Amount in words]
- 2. We undertake, if our tender is accepted, to commence the Works as soon as is reasonably possible after the receipt of the Project Manager's notice to commence, and to complete the whole of the Works comprised in the Contract within the time stated in the Appendix to Conditions of Contract.
- 3. We agree to abide by this tender until ______[Insert date], and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before that date.
- 4. Unless and until a formal Agreement is prepared and executed this tender together with your written acceptance thereof, shall constitute a binding Contract between us.
- 5. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any tender you may receive.

Dated thi	s day o	of	_20
Signature	ein the ca	pacity o	f
duly autł	norized to sign tenders for an		
of			[Address of Tenderer]
Witness;	Name		
	Address		
	Signature		
	Date		

8.14 TECHNICAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM

Date Tender No.

To:

[name and address of procuring entity]

Gentlemen and/or Ladies:

2. We undertake, if our Tender is accepted, to deliver install and commission the Goods/Services in accordance with the delivery schedule specified in the Schedule of Requirements.

4. We agree to abide by this Tender for a period of [*number*] days from the date fixed for tender opening of the Instructions to Bidders, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period.

5. This Tender, together with your written acceptance thereof and your notification of award, shall constitute a Contract, between us. Subject to signing of the Contract by the parties.

6. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any tender that you may receive.

Dated this day of 20

[signature]

[in the capacity of]

Duly authorized to sign tender for an on behalf of

8.15 CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

You are requested to give the particulars indicated in Part 1 and either Part 2(a), 2(b) or 2 (c) whichever applied to your type of business You are advised that it is a serious offence to give false information on this form

Part 1 – General:		
Business Name		
Location of business premises.		
Plot No		
Postal Address		Fax E mail
Nature of Business		
,		
Maximum value of business wh	lich you can handle at	any one time – Kshs.
Name of your bankers		Branch
	Part 2 (a) – Sole Pror	prietor

Your name in full	·····	Age	
Nationality			
Citizens	• •		
•			
	Part 2 (b) Partnership		
Given details of partners as fo	ollows:		
Name	Nationality	Citizenship Details	Sh
1	-	-	••••
2			•••
4	••••••		••
	Part 2 (c) - Registered Comp	any	
Private or Public			• • • • • • • • • • • •
State the nominal and issued	capital of company-		
Nominal Kshs			
Issued Kshs			
Given details of all directors a	s follows		
Name	Nationality	Citizenship Details	Sł
1	-	-	••••

2 3 4	2 3 4	
Dat	5 ate Sea	

8.16 TENDER SECURITY FORM

of submission of tender for the supply, installation and commissioning of (hereinafter called "the Tender") KNOW ALL PEOPLE by these presents that WE of having our registered office at "the *entity*} (hereinafter called Procuring entity") in the sum of for which payment well and truly to be made to the said Procuring entity, the Bank binds itself, its successors, and assigns by these presents. Sealed with the Common Seal of the said Bank this 20 day of

THE CONDITIONS of this obligation are:-

- 1. If the Bidder withdraws its Tender during the period of tender validity specified by the Bidder on the Tender Form; or
- 2. If the Bidder, having been notified of the acceptance of its Tender by the Procuring entity during the period of tender validity:
 - (a) fails or refuses to execute the Contract Form, if required; or
 - (b) fails or refuses to furnish the performance security in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders;

We undertake to pay to the Procuring entity up to the above amount upon receipt of its first written demand, without the Procuring entity having to substantiate its demand, provided that in its demand the Procuring entity will note that the amount claimed by it is due to it, owing to the occurrence of one or both of the two conditions, specifying the occurred condition or conditions.

This tender guarantee will remain in force up to and including thirty (30) days after the period of tender validity, and any demand in respect thereof should reach the Bank not later than the above date.

[signature of the bank] (Amend accordingly if provided by Insurance Company)

8.17 CONTRACT FORM

NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH AS FOLLOWS:

1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract referred to:

2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement viz:

- (a) the Tender Form and the Price Schedule submitted by the Bidder
- (b) the Schedule of Requirements
- (c) the Technical Specifications
- (d) the General Conditions of Contract
- (e) the Special Conditions of contract; and
- (f) the Procuring entity's Notification of Award

3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Procuring entity to the Bidder as hereinafter mentioned, the Bidder hereby covenants with the Procuring entity to provide the goods and to remedy the defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of this Contract

4. The Procuring entity hereby covenants to pay the Bidder in consideration of the provisions of the goods and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the contract.

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in accordance with their respective laws the day and year first above written.

Signed, sealed, delivered by entity)	the	(for the Procuring
Signed, sealed, delivered by the presence of	the	(for the Bidder in

8.18 PERFORMANCE SECURITY FORM

To [name of Procuring entity]

AND WHEREAS it has been stipulated by you in the said Contract that the Bidder shall furnish you with a bank guarantee by a reputable bank for the sum specified therein as security for compliance with the Bidder's performance obligations in accordance with the Contract.

AND WHEREAS we have agreed to give the Bidder a guarantee:

This guarantee is valid until the day of 20

Signed and seal of the Guarantors

[name of bank or financial institution]

[address]

[date] (Amend accordingly if provided by Insurance Company)

8.19 BANK GUARANTEE FOR ADVANCE PAYMENT

[name of tender]

Gentlemen and/or Ladies:

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract to be performed there-under or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between the Procuring entity and the Bidder, shall in any way release us from any liability under this guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition, or modification.

Yours truly,

Signature and seal of the Guarantors

[name of bank or financial institution]

[address]

[date]

8.20 MANUFACTURER'S AUTHORIZATION FORM

To [name of the Procuring entity]

We hereby extend our full guarantee and warranty as per the General Conditions of Contract for the goods offered for supply by the above firm against this Invitation for Tenders.

[signature for and on behalf of manufacturer]

Note: This letter of authority should be on the letterhead of the Manufacturer and should be signed by an authorized person.

8.21 LETTER OF NOTIFICATION OF AWARD

Address of Procuring Entity

To:

RE: Tender No.

Tender Name

This is to notify that the contract/s stated below under the above mentioned tender have been awarded to you.

- 1. Please acknowledge receipt of this letter of notification signifying your acceptance.
- 2. The contract/contracts shall be signed by the parties within 30 days of the date of this letter but not earlier than 14 days from the date of the letter.
- 3. You may contact the officer(s) whose particulars appear below on the subject matter of this letter of notification of award.

(FULL PARTICULARS)

SIGNED FOR ACCOUNTING OFFICER

8.22 DECLARATION FORM

То		
The Bidder i.e (Name and address) declare the following:		
(a) Has not been debarred from participating in Public Procureme	nt	
(b) Has not been involved in and will not be involved in corrupt and fraudlent practices regarding public procurement.		
Title Signature	Date	

(To be signed by authorized representative and officially stamped / sealed)

8.23 DETAILS OF SUB-CONTRACTORS

If the Bidder wishes to sublet any portions of the works under any heading, he must give below details of the sub-contractors he intends to employ for each portion. Failure to comply with this requirement may invalidate the tender.

Portion of works to be sublet:

- (i) Full name of Sub-contractor and address of head office:
- (ii) Sub-contractor's experience of similar works:.....

(increase the list if more than one)

.....

.....

(Signature of the bidder)

(Date)

8.24 FORM OF WRITTEN POWER-OF-ATTORNEY (S)

The Bidder consisting of a Joint Venture shall state here below the name and address of his representative who is authorized to receive on his behalf correspondence in connection with the Proposal.

.....

(Name of Bidder's Representative in block letters)

.....

.....

(Address of Bidder's Representative)

.....

•••••

(Signature of Bidder's Representative)